

1040

947044-WS

INDIGO ISLES M.H.P. OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

9181 GRIGGS RD. #73
ENGLEWOOD, FL. 34224

ORIGINAL
FILE COPY

November 18, 1994

Director
Div. of Records and Reporting
Florida Public Service Commission
Tallahassee, Fl. 32399-0850

Dear Sir:

In reference to Application for NonProfit Association
Exemption, Section 367-002, please find enclosed the
following:

- 1. Original and 2 copies of Application
- 2. Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws
- 3. Proof of Ownership

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

INDIGO ISLES MHP
OWNERS ASSN., INC.

Ruth H. Mockler
Treasurer

Enc.

P.S. Please note change
of Road #, ie 9181

DOCUMENT NUMBER-DATE

12019 NOV 29 8

FPSC-RECORDS/REPORTING

APPLICATION FOR NONPROFIT ASSOCIATION EXEMPTION
SECTION 367.022(7), FLORIDA STATUTES
RULE 25-30.060(3)(g), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

NAME OF SYSTEM: TURKEY ISLES MARINE HOME PARK OWNERS ASSN, INC

PHYSICAL ADDRESS OF SYSTEM: 9181 GRIGGERS RD - # 73
ENGLEWOOD, FL. 34224

MAILING ADDRESS (IF DIFFERENT): _____

COUNTY: CHARLOTTE

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON:

NAME: JACK SHINAVER

ADDRESS: 9181 GRIGGERS RD - # 21
ENGLEWOOD, FL. 34224

PHONE #: 697-3474

NATURE OF APPLICANT'S BUSINESS ORGANIZATION: (CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, SOLE PROPRIETOR, ETC.) Corporation

I believe this system to be exempt from the regulation of the Florida Public Service Commission pursuant to Section 367.022(7), Florida Statutes, for the following reasons:

1. The corporation, association, or cooperative is nonprofit.
2. Service will be provided solely to members who own and control it.
3. The system provides (CHOOSE THE ONE THAT IS APPLICABLE):
Water only _____
Wastewater only ✓
Both _____
4. _____ will do the billing for such service.
5. The service area is located at: 9181 Griggers Rd
Englewood, FL. 34224

DOCUMENT NUMBER DATE
12019 NOV 29

APPLICATION FOR NONPROFIT ASSOCIATION EXEMPTION

6. Attached are the articles of incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State and bylaws which clearly show the requirements for membership, that the members' voting rights are one vote per unit of ownership and the circumstances under which control of the corporation passes to the non-developer members. Control of the corporation must pass: 1) at 51 percent ownership by the non-developer members or 2) at some greater percentage delimited by a time period not to exceed 5 years from the date of incorporation.
7. Attached is proof of ownership of the utility facilities and the land upon which the facilities will be located or other proof of the applicant's right to continued use of the land, such as a 99-year lease. The Commission may consider a written easement or other cost effective alternative.


I am aware that pursuant to Section 837.06, Florida Statutes, whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in Section 775.082, S. 775.083, or S. 775.084.

INDIGO ISLES M.H.P. OWNERS ASSOC., INC.

(Applicant please print or type)

11/15/94

(Date)


(Signature)


(Title)

When you finish filling out the application, the original and two copies of the application, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws and proof of ownership should be mailed to: Director, Division of Records and Reporting, Florida Public Service Commission, 101 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850.



Department of Environmental Protection

Lawton Chiles
Governor

South District
2295 Victoria Avenue, Suite 364
Fort Myers, Florida 33901

Virginia B. Wetherell
Secretary

PERMITTEE:

Jack Shinaver, President
Indigo Isles Mobile Home
Park, Inc.
2801-Griggs Road - #73
Englewood, FL ~~34223~~
34224

I.D. No: 5208P05689
Permit/Certification
Number: D008-253432
Date of Issue: October 6, 1994
Expiration Date: October 6, 1999
County: Charlotte
Latitude: 26° 53' 43" N
Longitude: 82° 19' 11" W
Section/Town/Range: 20&21/41S/20E
Project: Indigo Isles Mobile Home Park
WWTP

4181

This permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rules 62-3, 62-7, 62-300, 62-301, 62-302, 62-600, 62-601, 62-602, 62-610 and 62-640.

(NOTE: Rule numbers have been changed [from 17- to 62-] effective 8/10/94, but our copies do not reflect this change yet.)

The above named permittee is hereby authorized to perform the work or operate the facility shown on the application and approved drawing(s), plans, and other documents, attached hereto or on file with the Department and made a part hereof and specifically described as follows:

Operate a 0.015 MGD extended aeration process wastewater treatment facility with effluent to a percolation pond located on site.

Project is located at ⁴¹⁸¹ ~~2801~~ Griggs Road, Grove City, Florida.



PERMIT NO. DC 08-2179

DATE 9-24-73

RECEIVED

11-16-73

State of Florida
Department of Air and Water Pollution Control

S. W. REGION DPO

PAID

Application For Permit to Construct
Water Pollution Sources

6015

11-16-73

Applicant:
(Owner or authorized agent)

Jack Shinaver

(Name and Title)

Name of Establishment:

(Down) of Indigo at Sea M/H Park
Rock Creek Mobile Home Park

(Corporation, Company, Political SD, Firm, etc.)

Mailing Address:

c/o Tri-County Engineering, Inc.
121 E. Charlotte Ave., Punta Gorda, Fla. 33950

Type of Pollution Source:

Mobile Home Park Sewage Plant

(Be Specific)

Location of Pollution Source:

Sec 21, XXXXX T418, R20E

(Number and Street)

(City)

Charlotte County, Florida

(County)

Location of Pollution Control Plant:

Lat. 26 53'43"

Long. 82 19'11"

Charlotte County, Florida

Permit Applied For:

Project Engineer:

New Source

1) Charles N. Givens, P.E.

Name

Modification of Existing Source

2) Tri-County Engineering, Inc.

Firm

Reconstruction of Existing Source
After Damage

3) 121 E. Charlotte Ave. Punta Gorda, Florida

Mailing Address

Expansion of Existing Source

4) Charles N. Givens, P.E.

Signature

Relocation of Existing Source

5) 6342

Florida Registration Number

For Department's Use Only → Permit No. _____ Date: _____

9181 Briggs Rd. #73 - Englewood, Fl. 34224



Department of State

I certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of the Articles of Incorporation of INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.

a corporation organized under the Laws of the State of Florida, filed on JANUARY 15, 1987

The document number of this corporation is N18785

Given under my hand and the Great Seal of the State of Florida, at Tallahassee, the Capital, this the 15th day of JANUARY, 1987



George Firestone
Secretary of State

CR2E022 (10-85)

CR2E040 (4-84)

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.
A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

ARTICLE I

NAME

The name of the Corporation shall be **INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.**

FILED
1957 JAN 15 10 3 15
SECRETARY OF STATE
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

ARTICLE II

DURATION

The Corporation shall commence existence upon the filing of the Articles of Incorporation with the Secretary of State and shall have a perpetual existence, unless sooner dissolved according to law.

ARTICLE III

PURPOSE

The purpose for which this Corporation is formed is to provide the Association with the power to negotiate for, acquire and operate the mobile home park on behalf of the mobile home owners. Additionally to provide for the conversion of the mobile home park once acquired to a condominium, a cooperative form of ownership, or another type of ownership. And, further, to protect fellowship, goodwill and entertainment as well as the improvement of facilities and services, to promote and encourage cooperative relationship in all social and civic matters which are pertinent to this corporation and to encourage the spirit of

friendly cooperation among members, and especially to extend such spirit towards new residents and mobile home owners.

The foregoing paragraph shall be construed as enumerating the purposes, objects and powers of this Corporation, and no recitation, expression or declaration of specific powers or purposes herein enumerated shall be deemed to be exclusive, but it is hereby expressly declared that all other lawful purposes are hereby included.

ARTICLE IV

MEMBERSHIP

Membership shall be open to all bona fide owners of a mobile home located in the park.

ARTICLE V

DIRECTORS

There shall be six members of the initial Board of Directors. The following shall serve as Directors until the first election, as provided for in the Bylaws.

FRANCIS CARR	2801 Griggs Road, #10 Englewood, Florida
WILLIAM MURPHY	2801 Griggs Road, #12 Englewood, Florida
KATHERINE GERMAIN	2801 Griggs Road, #5 Englewood, Florida
ROBERT SAMPSON	2801 Griggs Road, #33 Englewood, Florida
VICTOR O. BOWEN	2801 Griggs Road, #63 Englewood, Florida
JOHN TURNER	2801 Griggs Road, #67 Englewood, Florida

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS

The Officers of the Corporation shall consist of a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. The duties of the Officers shall be as regulated by the Bylaws. The following shall serve as initial Officers until the first election, as provided for in the Bylaws:

PRESIDENT	-	FRANCIS CARR
VICE PRESIDENT	-	WILLIAM MURPHY
SECRETARY	-	KATHARINE GERMAIN
TREASURER	-	ROBERT SAMPSON

ARTICLE VII

INCORPORATORS

The names and addresses of the subscribers to these Articles of Incorporation are as follows:

FRANCIS CARR	2801 Griggs Road, #10 Englewood, Florida
WILLIAM MURPHY	2801 Griggs Road, #12 Englewood, Florida
KATHARINE GERMAIN	2801 Griggs Road, #5 Englewood, Florida
VICTOR O. BOSEN	2801 Griggs Road, #63 Englewood, Florida
JOHN TURNER	2801 Griggs Road, #67 Englewood, Florida

ARTICLE VIII

MEETINGS

(1) Regular Monthly Meeting:

The regular monthly meetings shall be held on the first Tuesday of each month, from the month of November to April, in the Park Club House at 7:30 p.m.

(2) Annual Meeting:

The Annual Meeting shall be held in March at the Monthly Regular Meeting. This Annual Meeting shall be devoted to electing directors, reports of officers and committees, and installation of officers and transacting any other authorized business.

(3) Special Meeting:

Special Meetings may be called by the Board of Directors, the President, or upon the written request of voting members, representing 40% per cent of the total number of outstanding membership certificates. Notice of Special Meetings shall be given by U.S. Mail, at least 14 days prior to the scheduled meeting to all members.

(4) Quorums at Meetings:

At Regular Monthly Meetings, Annual Meetings and Special Meetings, a majority of the voting membership shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE IX

REGISTERED AGENT

The street address of the initial Registered Office shall be: 2601 Griggs Road, #68, Englewood, Florida, 33533, and the initial Registered Agent shall be: EDWARD A. DANNIC.

ARTICLE X

BYLAWS

The Bylaws of the Corporation shall be made, amended or rescinded by the Board of Directors.

→ 11/14/91
TO #73
34224
Ruth Lockler
Tr.

ARTICLE XI
AMENDMENTS

These Articles of Incorporation may be amended by the Board of Directors or the Act of the Membership. Such amendments shall be proposed and adopted in the manner provided by the Bylaws of the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, as Incorporator, has executed the foregoing Articles of Incorporation on the 9 day of January, 1967.

Francis Carr
FRANCIS CARR, Incorporator

William Murphy
WILLIAM MURPHY, Incorporator

Katharine Germain
KATHARINE GERMAIN, Incorporator

Victor O. Bowen
VICTOR O. BOWEN, Incorporator

John Turner
JOHN TURNER, Incorporator


STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF CHARLOTTE

BEFORE ME, a notary public, authorized to take acknowledgements in the State and County set forth above, personally appeared FRANCIS CARR, WILLIAM MURPHY, KATHARINE GERMAIN, VICTOR O. BOWEN and JOHN TURNER, as Incorporator, to me well known to be the person who executed the foregoing Articles of Incorporation as such and he acknowledged before me that he executed the same.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the State and County last aforesaid this 9 day of January, 1967.

Shirley J. Smith
Notary Public

Notary Public, State of Florida at Large
My Commission Expires Dec. 5, 1967
Bonded By United Surety, Fidelity & Guaranty Co.



My commission expires:

REGISTERED AGENT FORM

FILED
1967 JAN 25 PM 3:15
SECRETARY OF STATE
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

Certificate designating the place of business of Conocille
for the Service of Process within the State of Florida, and
naming the agent upon whom process may be served.

* * * * *

Pursuant to Chapter 48.091, Florida Statutes, the following
is submitted in compliance with said Act:

FIRST - That INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida Non-Profit Corporation, desiring to
organize under the laws of the State of Florida, with its
principal office, as indicated in the Articles of Incorporation,
at 2801 Hiogo Rd #68 Englewood, County of Charlotte, State
of Florida, has named Edward Dammie, located at
2801 Hiogo Rd #68 Englewood County of Charlotte, State of
Florida, as its registered agent to accept service of process
within this State of Florida.

SECOND - Having been named to accept service of process for
the above-named Corporation, at the place designated in this
Certificate, I hereby accept the appointment to act in this
capacity, and agree to comply with the provision of said Act
relative to keeping open said office.

By: Edward A. Dammie
Registered Agent

**BYLAWS
OF
INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.
A FLORIDA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION**

ARTICLE I

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Name. The name of this Corporation shall be **INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.**

1.2 Principal Office. The principal office of the Corporation shall be at 2801 Griggs Road #60, Englewood, County of Charlotte, State of Florida, or at such other place as may be subsequently designated by the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "Board" and sometimes "Directors").

1.3 Definitions. These Bylaws shall govern the operation of the Corporation, both prior to and subsequent to the conversion of INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC., or Condominium, into a Cooperative under the Florida Cooperative Act, Chapter 719, Florida Statutes. Any terms not defined in these Bylaws shall have those definitions established by the applicable Florida Statutes, except that if any definition in these Bylaws conflicts with a definition in the Florida Statutes, where permissible, the definition in these Bylaws shall prevail.

1.4 Operation. The operation of the Association, as well as the Directors, shall be governed by the Bylaws.

ARTICLE II

MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS

2.1 Membership. Membership in this Corporation shall be limited to bona fide owners of a mobile home located in INDIGO ISLES MOBILE HOME PARK, who have purchased Membership Certificates in the Corporation. Upon the transfer of a Membership Certificate, either voluntarily, in accordance with these Bylaws, or by operation of law, the transferee shall become a member of the Corporation if all the requirements for membership have been met. If the Membership Certificate is vested in more than one person, all of the persons owning the Membership Certificate shall be eligible to hold office, attend meetings and act as full members of the Corporation, but as hereinafter indicated, the vote of a Membership Certificate shall be cast by the "voting member". If a Membership Certificate is owned by a Corporation, the Corporation may designate an individual officer or employee as its voting member.

2.2 Voting.

(a) The owner of each Membership Certificate shall be entitled to one vote. If an owner owns more than one Membership Certificate, he shall be entitled to one vote for each Certificate. Each Membership Certificate's vote shall not be divisible.

(b) Majority Vote. The acts approved by a majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all Membership Certificate owners for all purposes, except where otherwise provided by law, in the Articles of Incorporation or in these Bylaws; and, as used in these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation, the term majority of the members shall mean those Membership Certificate owners having more than fifty percent (50%) of the total authorized votes of all Membership Certificates present, in person or by proxy, and voting at any meeting of the membership at which a quorum shall be present. The Corporation shall be entitled to vote all Membership Certificates which the Corporation has offered for sale and have not been purchased.

(c) Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the presence in person or by proxy of a majority of the designated voting membership shall constitute a quorum.

(d) Proxies. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing, signed by the person entitled to vote, shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation prior to or at the meeting at which they are to be used, and shall be only effective for the specific meetings for which originally given and any lawful recess or adjournment to a specific date thereof. In no event shall any proxy be valid for a period longer than ninety (90) days after the date of the first meeting for which it was issued.

(e) Designation of Voting Member. If a Membership Certificate is owned by more than one member, the member entitled to cast the membership vote shall be designated in a Certificate which shall be filed with the Secretary after being signed by all of the members owning an interest in such Certificate. If a Certificate is owned by a Corporation, it shall designate the person entitled to cast the membership vote by certifying such person's name with the Secretary. Each such Certificate shall be valid until revoked or superseded by a subsequent Certificate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Membership Certificate is owned jointly by a husband and wife, they may designate a voting member; or, not having designated a voting member, if only one is present at a meeting, that owner may cast the membership vote; or, if they are both present at a meeting and are unable to agree upon any subject requiring a vote, then there shall be no vote cast by the Membership Certificate on that particular subject at that meeting.

(f) Limitation on Right to Vote. Any member who is delinquent in paying any indebtedness to the Corporation that has been due for a period of more than thirty (30) days shall not be entitled to vote at any meeting of the membership until all such sums are paid in full. The Treasurer, or such other person charged with the responsibility of collecting the Corporation's accounts shall, at the commencement of any meeting, certify to the person conducting the meeting which Membership Certificates are current in payment of all assessments and are eligible to vote.

2.3 Minimum Age. No person under the age of fifty ⁵⁵ years shall be permitted to permanently reside in the Park, unless such person is a permanent resident at the time of recording of the proprietary lease.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

3.1 Place. All meetings of the membership shall be held in the recreation building of the Mobile Home Park or at such other place and at such time as shall be designated by the Directors and stated in the notice of the meeting.

3.2 Notices. The Secretary shall send by regular mail or deliver a notice of each annual or special meeting to each member and post a copy of the notice in a conspicuous place on the bulletin board located near the recreation building in the Mobile Home Park at least fourteen (14) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to such meeting. Notice of any meeting shall list the time, place and purpose thereof. All notices shall be mailed or served at the address of the member as it appears on the books of the Corporation. Proof of posting, delivery or mailing of notice shall be given by the Affidavit of the person serving the notice and the post office certificate of mailing shall be retained as proof of such mailing. Notice of specific meetings shall be waived by members before or after the meeting.

3.3 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting for the purpose of electing Directors and transacting any other authorized business shall be held during the first week in March of each year, or at such other time as shall be selected by the Directors. At the annual meeting, the members shall elect the Directors by a plurality vote (cumulative voting prohibited) and shall transact such other business as may be properly brought before the meeting.

3.4 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members for any purpose, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the President or shall be called by the President or Secretary at the request, in writing, of a majority of the Directors or at the request, in writing, of voting members representing forty percent (40%) of the total number of

membership certificate outstanding. Such request shall state the purpose of the proposed meeting. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the subject state in the notice of meeting.

3.5 Waiver and Consent. Whenever the vote of the members at a meeting is required or permitted by any provision of the statutes or the Articles of Incorporation, or of these Bylaws to be taken in connection with any action of the Corporation, the meeting and vote of members may be dispensed with if all of the members who would have been entitled to vote upon the action of such meeting, if such meeting were held, shall consent in writing to such action being taken. Membership Certificate owners may waive notice of specific meetings and may take action by written agreement without meetings.

3.6 Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of the membership cannot be organized because a quorum is not present, either in person or by proxy, the meeting shall be adjourned from time to time until a quorum is present.

3.7 Order of Business. The order of business at annual meetings and, as far as practical, at other meetings of the membership shall be:

- (a) Call to order by President or Chairman
- (b) Calling of the roll and certifying of proxies
- (c) Proof of notice of the meeting or waiver of notice
- (d) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes
- (e) Reports of officers
- (f) Reports of committees
- (g) Appointment of inspectors of election
- (h) Election of directors
- (i) Unfinished business
- (j) New business
- (k) Adjournment

3.8 Minutes of Meeting. The minutes of all meetings of the membership shall be kept in a book available for inspection by the members or their authorized representatives and board members at any reasonable time. The Corporation shall retain these minutes for a period of not less than seven (7) years.

ARTICLE IV

DIRECTORS

4.1 Membership. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by a Board of seven Directors. All Directors shall be owners of a Membership Certificate. No Director shall continue to serve on the Board after he ceases to be an owner of a Membership Certificate.

4.2 Election of Directors. Election of Directors shall be conducted in the following manner:

(a) Election of Directors shall be held at the annual meeting of the membership.

(b) A nominating committee of three (3) members, one of whom shall be on the Board of Directors, shall be appointed by the Board of Directors not less than sixty (60) days prior to the annual meeting of the membership. The committee shall nominate one person for each vacancy. The nominating committee shall make and publish at least forty-five (45) days prior to election the rules to be followed at each election of the Directors.

(c) Nothing in these Bylaws shall restrict any member desiring to be a candidate for Board membership from being nominated from the floor.

(d) The election shall be by ballot (unless dispensed with by unanimous consent) and by plurality of the votes cast, each person voting being entitled to cast a vote for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled (there shall be no cumulative voting).

(e) At any time after a majority of the Board is elected at a duly convened or regular or special meeting of the membership at which a quorum is present, any one or more of the Directors may be removed, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of voting members casting not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes present at such meeting. A successor may then and there be elected to fill any vacancy created. Should any vacancy not be filled, the Board may fill the vacancy in the manner provided below.

(f) If the office of any Director becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, retirement, disqualification or removal from office, a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum, shall choose a successor who shall hold office for the balance of the unexpired term of office of the Director he replaces.

(g) Any Director may resign at any time by sending written notice of such resignation to the office of the corporation. Any Director shall become disqualified to hold office upon the transfer of his membership certificate or termination of the Certificate designating the Director as being the designated voter for a membership certificate.

4.3 Terms of Directors. After the initial election, the terms of the Board of Directors shall be for a period of three years.

4.4 Organizational Meeting. The organizational meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after their

election at the annual meeting and no further notice of the organizational meeting shall be necessary.

4.5 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the Directors. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all members and notice of meetings shall be posted in a conspicuous place upon the park property at least 48 hours in advance, except in an emergency.

4.6 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Directors may be called by the President, or in his absence, by the Vice President and must be called by the President or Secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the members of the Board. Notice of the meeting shall be given personally or by mail, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meetings and shall be transmitted not less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting, except that, at any meeting where the budget or assessments against Membership Certificates are to be considered for any reason, notice of such meeting shall be posted conspicuously at the bulletin board provided for that purpose near the clubhouse at least thirty (30) days in advance of such meeting.

4.7 Waiver of Notice. Any Director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting. Attendance by any Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting unless the Director states that his attendance is for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called.

4.8 Quorum. A quorum at a Directors meeting shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors.

4.9 Adjourned Meetings. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there is less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting, any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.

4.10 Chairman of the Board. The presiding officer of the Directors meeting shall be the President of the Corporation who shall also be the Chairman of the Board and, in the absence of the Chairman of the Board, a temporary Chairman selected by a majority of the Board shall preside.

4.11 Order of Business. The order of business at Directors meetings shall be:

- (a) Roll call
- (b) Reading of minutes of the last meeting
- (c) Consideration of communications
- (d) Resignation and elections

- (e) Reports of officers and employees
- (f) Reports of committees
- (g) Unfinished business
- (h) Original resolutions and new business
- (i) Adjournment

4.12 Minutes of Meetings. The minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be kept in a book available for inspection by the membership or their authorized representative. Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors shall be retained for a period of not less than seven (7) years.

4.13 Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may, by resolution duly adopted, appoint an executive committee to consist of three to seven of the members of the Board of Directors. Such executive committee shall have and may exercise all of the powers of the Board of Directors in management of the business and affairs of the Cooperative during the intervals between the meetings of the Board of Directors insofar as any be permitted by law, except that the executive committee shall not have the power to establish the budget of the Corporation or determine the cash requirements or rent or assessments payable by the membership to meet the common expenses of the Cooperative or to amend or adopt rules governing the details of the operation and use of the Cooperative property.

4.14 Compensation. Directors shall not be entitled to any compensation for their services.

ARTICLE V

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE DIRECTORS

5.1 The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Corporation and may do all acts except such acts which by law or by these Bylaws may not be delegated to the Board of Directors by the membership. The Board of Directors shall have the power and duty to operate and maintain the common areas; determine the expenses required for the operation of the Corporation; collect rent and other assessments necessary for the common expenses of the Corporation; employ personnel necessary for the operation of the common areas; adopt rules and regulations covering the details of the operation of the Park; maintain bank accounts; purchase, lease or acquire membership certificates in the name of the Corporation; sell, sublet, transfer, mortgage or otherwise deal with the corporate assets; obtain insurance; borrow money on behalf of the Corporation when required in connection with capital improvements, operation, care, upkeep and maintenance of the common areas; however, the consent of two-thirds (2/3) of the membership shall be obtained prior to borrowing any sum in excess of \$1,000,000.00.

5.2 The Board of Directors shall exercise all of the powers specifically set forth in the Articles of Incorporation,

these Bylaws, and the laws of Florida; suspend the right of any member to use the recreation facilities of the Corporation so long as the members is delinquent in the payment of common expenses; impose a fee not in excess of Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) for the reasonable expenses required for the transfer, sublease or sale of a membership certificate; collect delinquent rent and assessments by suit or otherwise; abate nuisances; and join or seek damages from members for violation of these Bylaws and the terms and conditions of any proprietary lease.

5.3 The Board of Directors and the Officers of the Association shall have a fiduciary relationship to the members.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS

6.1 President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and Chairman of the Board of Directors. The President shall preside at all meetings of the membership. The President shall have general supervision over the affairs of the Corporation and other officers. The President shall sign all written contracts and perform all of the duties incident to the office and such duties as may be delegated from time to time by the Board.

6.2 Vice President. The Vice President shall perform such duties as may be required by the Board and, in the absence of the President, those duties incidental to the office of the President.

6.3 Secretary. The Secretary or Assistant Secretary shall issue notices of meetings, shall attend and keep minutes of all meetings and shall have charge of all of the books and records of the Corporation, except those kept by the Treasurer.

6.4 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of the Corporation's funds and securities. The Treasurer shall keep full and accurate accounts of the Corporation's receipts and disbursements and shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name of and to the credit of the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated by the Board. The Treasurer shall account for the Corporation and the membership in accordance with Florida Law.

6.5 Initial Officers. The officers of the Corporation who shall hold office and serve until the first election of officers by the Board of Directors of the Corporation following the first meeting of the membership are as follows:

PRESIDENT	-	Francis S. Carr
VICE PRESIDENT	-	William Murphy
SECRETARY	-	Katharine Germain
TREASURER	-	Robert Sampson

6.6 Compensation. The President and Vice President shall not receive compensation for their services. The Secretary and Treasurer or Secretary-Treasurer may be compensated upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Board of Directors. ✓

6.7 Resignation. Any officer may resign his post at any time by written resignation delivered to the Secretary, which shall take effect immediately unless a later date is specified therein.

ARTICLE VII

CORPORATE FUNDS

7.1 Depositories. The finds of the Corporation shall be deposited in such banks and depositories as may be determined and approved by resolutions of the Board. Funds shall be withdrawn only upon checks and demands for money signed by such officer or officers as may be designated by the Board.

7.2 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January each year; provided, however, the Board is expressly authorized to change to a different fiscal year if it deems it advisable.

7.3 Cash Requirements. Each owner of a membership certificate shall be liable for a 1/72th percentage or portion of the common expenses.

7.4 Assessments. Common expense assessments and the budget which is the base for the assessment shall be in accordance with law. If the annual assessment proves to be insufficient, it may be amended at any time by an action of the majority of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The unpaid assessments for the remaining portion of the year shall be due in equal monthly installments of the first day of each subsequent month during the year for which the assessment is made. If any annual assessment is not made or required, a payment in the amount required by the last prior assessment shall be due upon each assessments payment date until changed by a new assessment. Assessments shall be made in amounts no less than are required to provide funds in advance for the payment of all of the anticipated current operating costs and expenses and for all of the unpaid operating expenses previously incurred by the Corporation.

7.5 Assessments of Other than Common Expenses. Certain of the units in the Park are owned by the Corporation or leased by members who have not paid the entire sum due for the membership certificate which they hold. The expenses of financing these units are not common expenses as the common expenses are assessed as though all of the membership certificates have been sold by the Corporation and paid in full. The Directors shall establish a special assessment against those units leased by

persons holding membership certificates in the Corporation which have not yet been fully paid so that the interest expense of the Corporation on the unpaid balance of the membership certificate and the pro rata principal payment is passed on to the member holding the membership certificate on that particular unit. The Directors shall also establish and collect rent on all those units that the Corporation holds the membership certificate so that the expense to the Corporation in the form of interest and principal payments on such unsold membership certificates shall be allocated pro rata to each of such units. Such expenses shall only be common expenses to the extent that the Corporation fails or is unable to collect revenues sufficient from the above special assessments and rents to meet the mortgage expense to the Corporation on all of such units.

7.6 Determination of Assessments.

(a) The Directors shall fix and determine the sum or sums necessary and adequate to assess members for their share of the common expenses by virtue of a budget to be adopted by the Board of Directors. Common expenses shall include expenses for the operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the common areas; costs of carrying out the powers and duties of the Corporation; all insurance coverage; and any other expenses designated as common expenses by the Directors or the proprietary lease. Funds for the payment of common expenses shall be assessed against members as provided in these Bylaws and the proprietary leases. Assessments shall be payable monthly in advance and shall be due on the first day of each month unless otherwise ordered by the Directors. Assessments shall be made against members monthly, as aforesaid, in an amount required to provide funds in advance for payment of the anticipated current operating expenses and for unpaid operating expenses previously incurred. Special assessments, if necessary, shall be levied in the same manner as regular assessments and shall be payable in the manner determined by the Directors. All funds due under these Bylaws are common expenses, except rent and those funds assessed under Paragraph 7.5 above.

(b) A copy of the proposed budget shall be mailed to the members not less than thirty (30) days prior to the board meeting at which the budget will be considered, together with a notice of that meeting. The Directors' meeting at which the budget shall be considered shall be open to all of the members.

(c) If an adopted budget requires assessment against the members in any fiscal or calendar year exceeding 115 percent (115%) of the assessments for the preceding year, the Directors, upon written application of ten percent (10%) of the members, shall call a special meeting of the members within thirty (30) days, upon not less than ten (10) days written notice. At the special meeting, members shall consider and enact a budget. The adoption of the budget shall require a vote of not less than 66 2/3% of all members. The Directors may propose a budget to the

members at the meeting of members or in writing; and, if the budget or proposed budget is approved by the members at the meeting or by vote of at least 66 2/3% of all members in writing, the budget shall be adopted. In determining whether assessments exceed 115% of similar assessments in prior years, any authorized provisions for reasonable reserves for repair or replacement of the Cooperative property, expenses by the Corporation which are not anticipated to be incurred on a regular or annual basis, or assessments for betterments to the Cooperative property shall be excluded from the computation.

(d) The proposed annual budget of common expenses shall be detailed and shall show the amounts budgeted by accounts and expense classifications, including, if applicable, but not limited to those expenses listed in Section 719.504(20), Florida Statutes. In addition to annual operating expenses, the budget shall include reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance. These accounts shall include, but not be limited to, roof replacement, building painting and pavement resurfacing. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by means of a formula which is based upon estimated life and estimated replacement cost of each reserve item. The immediate foregoing shall not apply to budgets in which the members have a two-thirds (2/3) vote at a duly called meeting of the Corporation determined for a fiscal year to provide no reserves or reserves less adequate than required by the foregoing section.

(e) When the Directors determine the amount of any assessment, the Treasurer shall mail or present to each member a statement of assessment. All assessments shall be paid to the Treasurer and, upon request, the Treasurer shall give a receipt for each payment received.

7.7 Rent. The Directors shall determine annually the rent to be charged for the ensuing year in accordance with the terms of the proprietary lease.

7.8 Application of Payments and Commingling of Funds. All sums collected by the Corporation from common expense assessments, rent, other charges and income may be commingled in a single fund or divided into more than one fund, as determined by the Directors. Any delinquent payment by a member shall be applied to interest, costs, attorney's fees, other charges, expenses, advances and general or special assessments in such manner and amounts as the Directors determine.

7.9 Acceleration of Assessment Installments Upon Default. If a member shall be in default in the payment of an installment upon an assessment, the Directors may accelerate the remaining installments of the assessment upon notice to the member, and the unpaid balance of the assessment shall be due upon the date stated in the notice, but not less than five (5) days after delivery of the notice to the member, or not less

than ten (10) days after the mailing of such notice to him by registered or certified mail, whichever shall first occur.

7.10 Fidelity Bonds. The members shall obtain fidelity bonding of all officers or directors of the Corporation who control or disburse funds of the Corporation. The Corporation shall bear the cost of any such bonding.

7.11 Audit. An audit of the accounts of the Corporation may be made from time to time as directed by the Directors. A copy of any audit report received as a result of an audit or written summaries thereof shall be furnished each member of the Corporation not less than thirty (30) days after its receipt by the Directors and at least annually to each member. The report shall meet the requirements of Section 719.104(2), Florida Statutes.

7.12 Accounting Records and Reports. The accounting records of the Corporation shall be open to inspection by members or their authorized representatives at reasonable times, and written summaries of them shall be supplied at least annually as set out in Paragraph 7.11 above. The records shall include, but not be limited to, (a) a record of all receipts and expenditures, and (b) an account for each membership certificate designating the name and current mailing address of the member, the amount of each assessment, the dates and the amounts in which the assessments come due, the amount paid upon the account and the balance due.

7.13 Tax Deductions Statement. The Corporation shall, on or before March 15, following the close of the fiscal year, send to each member listed on the books of the Corporation for the prior fiscal year a statement setting forth the amount per membership certificate of that portion of the rent paid by such member under his proprietary lease during such year which has been used by the Corporation for payment of real estate taxes and interest on a mortgage or other indebtedness paid by the Corporation with respect to property owned by it.

7.14 Application of Payment. All payments by a member shall be applied as provided herein and in the proprietary lease for his unit.

7.15 Transfers and Fees. The assignment or sublease of units is subject to the approval of the Directors pursuant to these Bylaws and the proprietary leases. The Directors may impose a fee in connection with the approval of the assignment or sublease of units; provided, however, that no fee shall be charged in connection with an assignment, sublease or approval in excess of the expenditures reasonably required for the transfer, and this expense shall not exceed \$50.00. No charge shall be made in connection with an extension or renewal of a sublease.

ARTICLE VIII

ROSTER OF MEMBERS AND MORTGAGES

The Corporation shall maintain records entitled "Members". A member who mortgages his unit shall notify the Corporation of the name and address of his mortgagee shall file a copy of the mortgage documents with the Corporation. A member who satisfies a mortgage covering a unit shall also notify the Corporation thereof and file a copy of the satisfaction of mortgage with the Corporation.

ARTICLE IX

PARLIAMENTARY RULES

Roberts' Rule of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of the Corporation meetings when not in conflict with the proprietary lease, the Articles or these Bylaws.

ARTICLES X

AMENDMENTS

Except as otherwise provided elsewhere, these Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:

10.1 Proposal of Amendments. A resolution for the adoption of an amendment to these Bylaws may be proposed either by a majority of the Directors or by not less than twenty percent (20%) of the members entitled to vote.

10.2 Notice of Amendment. Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is to be considered.

10.3 Adoption. Amendment may be adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) vote at the meeting set forth in notice given pursuant to Section 10.2.

10.4 Consent to Certain Amendments. No amendments to the Bylaws shall be valid without the written consent of one hundred percent (100%) of the members affected by any amendment that changes the configuration or size of any unit in any material fashion or that materially alters or modifies the appurtenances of the unit or changes the proportion of percentage by which the member shares the common expenses and the common surplus and equity in the Corporation or changes or modifications in voting rights or location of a member's unit.

10.5 Errors and Omissions. In the event it shall appear that there is an error or omission in these Bylaws or exhibits thereto or any Cooperative document, then and in that event the Corporation may correct such error or omission by an amendment to these Bylaws in the manner hereinafter described to

effectuate an amendment for the purpose of curing defects, errors or omissions. Such an amendment shall not require a vote of approval as provided in Paragraph 10.3 above but shall require a vote in the following manner:

(a) Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment to cure a defect, error or omission shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which such proposed amendment is to be considered.

(b) A resolution for the adoption of such a proposed amendment may be proposed by either the Directors or by the members of the Corporation. Except as elsewhere provided, such approvals must be either by:

(i) Not less than thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) of the entire membership of the Directors and by not less than ten percent (10%) of the votes of the entire membership of the Corporation; or

(ii) Not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the votes of the entire membership of the Corporation; or

(iii) In the alternative, an amendment may be made by an agreement signed and acknowledged by all members in the manner required for the execution of a deed, and such amendment shall be effective when recorded in the Public Records of Charlotte County, Florida.

(c) The foregoing provisions relating to amendments for defects, errors or omissions are intended to be in accordance with and pursuant to Section 719.304(1), Florida Statutes.

(d) The amendment made pursuant to this paragraph need only be executed and acknowledged by the Corporation and by no other parties whatsoever.

10.6 Proviso. No amendment may be adopted which would eliminate, modify, prejudice, abridge or otherwise adversely affect any rights, benefits, privileges or priorities granted or reserved to mortgagees of units without the consent of the mortgagees in each instance. No amendment shall be made that is in conflict with the Articles or the proprietary leases.

10.7 Execution. A copy of each amendment shall be attached to a certificate certifying that the amendment was duly adopted as an amendment of these Bylaws, which certificate shall be executed by the President or Vice President and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Corporation with the formalities of a deed. The amendment shall be effective when the certificate and copy of the amendment are recorded in the Public Records of Charlotte County, Florida.

ARTICLE XI

COMPLIANCE AND DEFAULT

11.1 Violations. In the event of a violation (other than the non-payment of an assessment) by a member or occupant of a unit of any of the provisions of these Bylaws, the proprietary lease or the Act, the Corporation, by direction of its Directors, shall notify the member of said breach by written notice, transmitted to the member at his unit by certified mail. If such violation shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of mailing of the notice, the Corporation shall have the right to treat such violation as an intentional, material breach of Bylaws, the proprietary lease or the Act, and the Corporation shall then, at its option, have the following elections:

(a) To commence an action in equity to enforce performance on the part of the member; or

(b) To commence an action at law to recover its damages; or

(c) To commence an action in equity for such equitable relief as may be necessary under the circumstances, including injunctive relief.

Upon a finding by a Court that the member was in violation of any of the provisions of the above-mentioned documents, the member shall reimburse the Corporation for its reasonable attorney's fees incurred in bringing such action. Any violations which are deemed by the Directors to be a hazard to public health or safety may be corrected by the Corporation immediately as an emergency matter. The cost thereof shall be charged to the member as a specific item, which shall, until paid in full, be a lien against his unit with the same force and effect as if the charge were a part of the common expenses.

11.2 Defaults. In the event a member does not pay any rent, sums, charges, or assessments required to be paid to the Corporation within thirty (30) days from the due date, the Corporation, acting on its own behalf or through its Directors or manager acting on behalf of the Corporation, may foreclose the lien encumbering the unit created by non-payment of the required monies in the same fashion as mortgage liens are foreclosed pursuant to Section 719.102, Florida Statutes. The Corporation shall be entitled to the appointment of a receiver if it so requests. The Corporation shall have the right to bid in the unit at a foreclosure sale and to acquire, hold, sublet, mortgage and convey the same. In lieu of foreclosing its lien, the Corporation may, through its Directors, bring suit to recover a money judgment for any sums, charges or assessments required to be paid to the Corporation without waiving its lien securing same. In any action either to foreclose its lien or to

recover a money judgment, brought by or on behalf of the Corporation against a member, the losing party shall pay the costs thereof, together with a reasonable attorney's fees.

11.3 Negligence or Carelessness of a Member. Each member shall be liable for the expenses of any maintenance, repair or replacement rendered necessary by the member's act, neglect or carelessness, or by the negligence of any family member, guests, employees, agents or licensees. Such liability shall be limited to the extent that such expense is not met by the proceeds of insurance carried by the Corporation.

11.4 Election of Remedies. All rights, remedies and privileges granted to the Corporation or a member pursuant to any terms, provisions, covenants or conditions of the Cooperative documents shall be deemed to be cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more shall neither be deemed to constitute an election of remedies nor shall it preclude the party thus exercising the same from exercising such other additional rights, remedies, or privileges as may be granted by the Cooperative documents.

ARTICLE XII

INDEMNIFICATION

Every Director and Officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation against all expenses and liabilities, including attorneys' fees reasonably incurred by or imposed upon him in connection with any proceeding or settlement thereof in which the officer may become involved, by reason of his being or having been a Director or Officer of the Corporation. This indemnification shall apply whether or not the individual is a Director or Officer at the time such liabilities or expenses are incurred, except in cases wherein the Director or Officer adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of his duties. In the event of a settlement, the indemnification established herein shall apply only when the Board approves such settlement or reimbursement. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of any and all other rights of indemnification to which such Director or Officer may be entitled.

ARTICLE XIII

LIABILITY SURVIVES TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

The termination of membership in the Corporation shall not relieve or release any former member from any liability or obligation incurred under or in any way connected with the Cooperative during the period of membership, or impair any rights or remedies which the Corporation may have against such former member, arising out of, or which is in any way connected with, such membership.

ARTICLE XIV

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Notwithstanding the duty of the Corporation to maintain and repair the common facilities, the Corporation shall not be liable for injury or damage caused by a latent condition in the property, nor for injury or damage caused by the elements, members or other persons.

ARTICLE XV

LIENS

Protection of Property. All liens against a unit, other than permitted mortgages, taxes or special assessments, shall be satisfied or otherwise removed within thirty (30) days of the date the lien attaches. All taxes and special assessments shall be paid before becoming delinquent or as provided in the Cooperative documents or Bylaws, whichever is sooner.

ARTICLE XVI

SEAL

The seal of the Corporation shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation, the year of its organization, and the words "Non-Profit". Said seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed, affixed, reproduced or otherwise.

ARTICLE XVII

PROPRIETARY LEASES AND MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATES

17.1 Issuance. No share certificates shall be issued by the Corporation. One proprietary lease shall be issued to each Lessee of a unit in the Cooperative. The price for the issuance of the proprietary lease shall be the price of the initial membership dues for the purchase of the membership certificate of the same number as the unit. The initial membership dues for the certificates and proprietary leases shall be set from time to time by the Directors.

17.2 Execution. All proprietary leases shall be signed by the President or Vice President and shall have the corporate seal affixed. Membership certificates shall be signed by the President and Secretary and shall have the corporate seal affixed.

17.3 Form of Proprietary Lease. The form of proprietary lease from time to time shall be determined by the Directors.

17.4 Form of Membership Certificate. The form of membership certificate shall be determined by the Directors.

17.5 Transfers. Transfers of proprietary leases and membership certificates shall be made only on the books of the Corporation. The existing lease and certificate, properly endorsed, shall be surrendered and cancelled before a new lease and certificate is issued. All transfers are subject to these Bylaws and the Master Form Proprietary Lease.

17.6 Votes. Each proprietary lease shall entitle the lessee and holder to one vote in the meetings of the Corporation.

17.7 Liens. The Corporation shall have a first lien on all of the individual leases and membership certificates in the name of each member for debts due the Corporation by such member.

17.8 Memorandum of Proprietary Lease. In lieu of recording a complete and full proprietary lease, a memorandum of proprietary lease may be recorded.

17.9 Inscription of Membership Certificates. Membership Certificates shall be inscribed with the following legend:

"The rights of any holder of the membership certificate are subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Corporation and to all the terms, covenants, conditions and provisions of a certain proprietary lease made between the Corporation, as Lessor, and the person in whose name this certificate is issued, as Lessee, for a unit in the mobile home park which is owned by the Corporation and operated as a "Cooperative", which proprietary lease limits and restricts the title and right of any transferee of this Certificate and imposes a lien on this certificate to secure payment of assessments, common expenses and other sums which may become due to the Corporation from the holder hereon".

ARTICLE XVIII

EASEMENTS

Each of the following easements is a covenant running with the land of the Cooperative, to wit:

18.1 Utility Service; Drainage. Easements are reserved under, through and over the cooperative property as may be required for utility services and drainage in order to serve the Cooperative. Such reservation is also contained in the Master Form Proprietary Lease. A member shall do nothing on or under the unit that interferes with or impairs the utility services using these easements. The Directors shall have a right of

access to each unit to inspect same, to maintain, repair or replace the pipes, wires, cables, conduites and other utility service facilities contained in or under the unit or elsewhere in the Cooperative property, and to remove any improvements interfering with or impairing the utility services or easements herein reserved; provided that such right of access shall not unreasonably interfere with the member's permitted use of the unit, and entry shall be made on not less than one (1) day's notice except in the event of an emergency.

18.2 Traffic. An easement shall exist for pedestrian traffic over, through and across sidewalk, paths, walks, other portions of the Cooperative property as may be from time to time intended and designated for such purpose and use; and for vehicular and pedestrian traffic over, through and across such portions of the Cooperative property as may, from time to time, be paved and intended for such purposes; and such easements shall be for the use and benefit of members, institutional mortgages, or tenants, and those claiming by, through or under the aforesaid.

18.3 Covenant. All easements of whatever kind or character, whether heretofore or hereafter created, shall constitute a covenant running with the land, shall survive the termination of the Cooperative, and, notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, may not be substantially amended or revoked in a way which would unreasonably interfere with its proper and intended use and purpose.

ARTICLE XIX

APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION

The Corporation, by its execution of these Bylaws approves and ratifies all of the covenants, terms and conditions, duties and obligations of these Bylaws and exhibits attached hereto. The members, by virtue of their acceptance of the proprietary leases and appurtenant membership certificates as to their unit, hereby approve and ratify all of the terms and conditions, duties, and obligations of these Bylaws and exhibits attached hereto.

ARTICLE XX

RULES AND REGULATIONS

Rules and Regulations may be adopted and amended from time to time and shall be deemed in effect until amended by the Directors and shall apply to and be binding upon all members. The members shall, at all times, obey said rules and regulations and shall use their best efforts to see that they are faithfully observed by their families, guests, invitees, servants, lessees and persons over whom they exercise control or supervision. In order to change, amend or vary old or present rules and regulations and/or adopt new rules and regulations, the same

shall be duly passed by at least fifty-one percent (51%) majority vote of the Directors; no vote of the membership shall be required. A change, amendment or adoption of a rule and regulation shall not require an amendment to the Bylaws. The rules and regulations, in full force and effect as of the date of these Bylaws, are attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and made a part hereof as though set out in full.

ARTICLE XXI

CONSTRUCTION

Whenever the masculine singular form of the pronoun is used in these Bylaws, it shall be construed to mean the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural, wherever the context so requires.

Should any of the covenants herein imposed be void or become unenforceable at law or in equity, the remaining provisions of this instrument shall, nevertheless, be and remain in full force and effect.

ARTICLE XXII

CONFLICT

If any irreconcilable conflict should exist, or hereafter arise, with respect to the interpretation of these Bylaws and the proprietary leases, the provisions of the proprietary leases shall prevail.

Passed and duly adopted this 9th day of February, 1987.

Katherine W. German
Secretary